



UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA TRACK AND FIELD PRESS BOOK 1951

Table of Contents

	Page
University of Southern California	1
Trojan varsity track schedule 1951	2
Coach Jess Hill	3
Freshman Coach Bob Chambers	4
Acting Coach Jesse Mortensen	5
Trojan varsity track prospects 1951	6
Performances by Trojans in 1950	10
Trojan champions and championships	14
Trojan record in past championship meets	15
Trojan national collegiate champions	16
Trojan national A.A.U. champions	17
Trojan varsity records	18
Los Angeles Coliseum records	19
Trojan-U.C.L.A. meet records	20
Trojan-California meet records	21
Trojan-Stanford meet records	22
Trojan-Occidental meet records	23
Southern Pacific A.A.U. meet records	24
Pacific Coast Conference meet records	25
Other records held by Trojans	26
Trojan freshman track records	27

Cover: Jess Hill hands over NCAA trophy to Jesse Mortensen (right) for safekeeping. Also pictured: Co-Captains Art Barnard, hurdles; Jack Rowan, pole vault.

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GENERAL INFORMATION

Location--Los Angeles 7, California

(Immediately Northwest of Figueroa Street and

Exposition Boulevard.)

Founded--1879

President--Fred D. Fagg, Jr.

Enrollment--(Spring Semester, Estimated) 12,500

Conference--Pacific Coast

Colors--Cardinal and Gold

Nickname--Trojans

Stadium and practice field--Memorial Coliseum

Exposition Park, Los Angeles

Director of Athletics--Willis O. Hunter Assistant Director of Athletics--Alan D. Ewen

Faculty Athletic Representative--Hugh C. Willett

(President, NCAA)

Head Track Coach--Jess Hill

Room 208, Student Union

RIchmond 4111, Ext. 373

Assistant Coach--Jesse Mortenson

Freshman Coach—Bob Chambers

Team Physician--Dr. Willis Jacobus

Team Trainer--Kearney Reeb

Student Manager--Bob Gibson

Student Body President--Al Wiggins

Student Publication--Daily Trojan

Editor, Russell E. Ward

Sports Editor, Joseph Digles

Mascot--George Tirebiter II (a dog)

Ticket Manager--John Morley

Ticket Department

Room 209, Student Union

University Park

Los Angeles 7, California

PRospect 6611 or RIchmond 4111, Ext. 211

Program Manager--Kenneth Stonier

Assistant, Athletic News Service--Bob Erburu

Director, Athletic News Service--Bob Smith

3551 University Avenue Los Angeles 7, California

RIchmond 4111, Ext. 273

Rooms 217-18, Student Union

TROJAN VARSITY TRACK SCHEDULE--1951

<u>Date</u>	Meet	Place	Last ye S.C.	ar's score Opp.
March 10	Long Beach Relays	Long Beach	44 (f	irst)
March 17	Occidental dual	Occidental	84	52
March 24	San Diego State	San Diego	(rain	ed out)
March 31	Open			
April 7	Arizona State (Tempe)	Tempe, Arizona	95½	35½
April 14	California	Coliseum	88 1/12	42 11/12
April 21	Michigan and Illinois (tentative)	Coliseum		
April 28	Stanford	Palo Alto	95 5/6	35 1/6
May 5	UCLA	Westwood	120	11
May 12	Fresno Relays	Fresno	75 1/3	(first)
May 18	Coliseum Relays	Coliseum	(no s	core kept)
May 19	California Relays	Modesto	40 1/3	(second)
May 25-26	Pacific Coast Conference	Coliseum	62 1/5	(first)
June 1	Championships Compton Invitational	Compton		
June 8	District AAU Championships	Coliseum		
June 15-16	NCAA Championships	Seattle	49 1/5	(first)
June 19	PCC-Big 10 Dual	Eugene		
June 22-23	National AAU Championships	(Site undetermine	d)	

COACH JESS HILL

After watching his SC track and field teams react for two national collegiate championships in two seasons as head man, Jess Hill moves on to the football coaching job at the University of Southern California. Hill retains his title as nominal head of Troy's track team but acting coach Jesse Mortensen undoubtedly will shoulder the major portion of the work and responsibility for the 1951 team's performance.

In both years as track coach at Troy, Hill guided his team to cherished NCAA championships, to the Pacific Coast conference dual meet title, to team championships in the Long Beach, Fresno and Coliseum relays, the P.C.C. meet championship and to the Modesto relays crown in 1949.

Over the period, Trojan trackmen broke four world records. In his first year, Pell Mel Patton lowered Jesse Owens' 220-yard mark to 20.2s. and anchored a four-man 880-yard relay team to a lm. 24s. record. Last season, Dick Attlesey bettered Harrison Dillard's record for the 120-yard high hurdles to 13.5s. and twice improved on the 110-meter mark to the same 13.5s. figure.

To his new head football coaching position, Hill brings 16 years of experience at Riverside JC, Corona high school, Long Beach CC, St. Mary's Fre-Flight and with the SC freshmen. If he can do as well with Troy's gridiron fortunes as he did as Dean Cromwell's successor in track and field, Hill can become his University's greatest all-around coach as well as one of its top all-around athletes.

Hill was a member of three successive track teams at S.C., 1927-29, and lettered all three years in the broad jump. He climaxed his track career at Troy when he won the I.C.4-A. broad jump title in 1929 with a meet record leap of 25ft. 7/8in. He was the first Trojan ever to better 25 feet in the event, and only two other S.C. jumpers --Dick Barber and Al Olson--have since surpassed Hill's supreme effort.

Jess played two years for Howard Jones' football team (1928-29) and was a whiz as a fullback. Although never a starter (he played behind "Sheriff" Jim Musick in his senior year) Hill topped the Pacific Coast Conference statistics in '29 for the highest average yards gained per play of all backs. Jess, in seven conference games, handled the ball 54 times for 44l yards, an average of 8.2 per play. He was the star of the 48-0 win over Washington at Seattle, even though he received belated credit as a befuddled radio announcer misnamed him "Cliff Thiede" all afternoon as Jess ran wild.

Hill didn't report to Sam Barry for baseball until his final year, 1930, but neither Sam nor Jess ever regretted the ultimate decision. First playing third base and later shifting to the outfield, Hill was the leading batter of the California Intercollegiate Baseball Association with a .389 average (21 hits for 54 at-bats) as the Trojans won their first CIBA title.

Orv. Mohler and Garrett Arbelbide were Hill's teammates on that nine.

Jess promptly signed with the old Hollywood Stars at the end of the college schedule and on his first official time at the plate in Wrigley Field on June 5, 1930, with Beryl "Trader" Horne of the Angels pitching, Hill powdered the ball over the fence for a home run. Jess went on that year to bat .356 in 115 games of double-A ball, and next year hit at a .318 clip.

Purchased by the New York Yankees, Hill played for Newark in 1932, St. Paul in 1933 and came back to Newark in '34 (batting .349) before stepping up to the Yanks in

135. He saw action in 107 games as he batted .293 for Joe McCarthy that season, hit for .305 for Washington in 1936, and then played both for the Senators and Connie Mack's Philadelphia A's in '37. In 1938 and 1939 he played for Oakland and then retired with a 10-year professional batting average of .306 with play only in Major League and AAA ranks.

At Corona High School before he came to S.C., Hill was a one-man riot. Over a two-year span he won ten letters in football, basketball, baseball, track and tennis. Then he moved on to Riverside Junior College for a year and there earned awards in all the above-mentioned sports but tennis. Riverside had championship teams in all four sports that year (1925-26).

Jess entered S.C. in February, 1927. He graduated in June, 1930, cum laude.

After his retirement from baseball, he coached at Corona High, Riverside Junior College and Long Beach City College.

In March, 1942, Hill enlisted in the Navy and was discharged in February, 1946, as a lieutenant-commander. In the Navy he coached and played baseball at St. Mary's and Del Monte Pre-Flights and later was athletic director at Clinton, Camp Kearney and Memphis Naval Air Stations.

After his discharge, Jess went back to Long Beach City College and coached an unbeaten baseball team in the Metropolitan Conference.

Hill finally returned to S.C. in July, 1946, and immediately got off to a flying start by mentoring one of Troy's greatest frosh football teams that season. The mighty '46 Trobabes were unbeaten and untied in five games, rolling up 238 points to 26 for the opposition. In their two games with UCLA the Trojan yearlings triumphed by scores of 66-13 and 40-7.

Jess coached frosh football from 1946 to 1948 and assisted Dean Cromwell with the 1947 and 1948 track and field teams. In 1948 he also held the job as freshman track coach.

Hill is married to the former Elizabeth Helen Glass, who was his high school sweetheart at Corona High. He has two children-Mary Elizabeth, 18, and Jesse T. Hill, Jr., 9.

FRESHMAN COACH BOB CHAMBERS

Bob Chambers, one of the most inspiring performers ever to represent the University of Southern California in track and field, takes his first crack at coaching this spring. A native of Los Gatos, he was a veteran of 4 years on the track team.

Co-Captain of last season's NCAA championship team, Chambers will handle Troy's splendid crop of freshman trackmen, as well as help with the varsity.

A member of the U.S. Olympic team that won the London Games in 1948, Chambers ran his most inspirational races while qualifying for the team and placing sixth in the 800 meters.

Chambers returned to the Trojan campus in 1949-50 to stage some of the greatest driving finishes ever witnessed in Troy's rich track heritage. Twice running the unfamiliar 440-yard dash against Stanford in a 1949 dual meet, Chambers nipped quartermiling specialist Larry Hoff of Stanford at the tape.

ACTING COACH JESSE MORTENSEN

Sporting a rich background as a coach and as a player, Jesse Mortensen returns to the University of Southern California as acting track and field coach. He pinch hits for Jess Hill, who this spring will devote his major efforts to preparing the Trojan football team for the 1951 season.

Mortensen comes back to SC from the U.S. Military Academy at West Point, where he was head track and field coach. Along with Hill, his team-mate at Troy in the late twenties, Mortensen is considered one of the greatest all-around athletes in the annals of Western sport. He has supplemented his athletic background, which included the National AAU decathlon championship, with a broad background in the coaching field.

Following his graduation from SC in the spring of 1930, Mortensen began a 14-year career as coach of football, track, basketball and baseball at Riverside junior college. Co-coaching with Hill in the 1930-33 seasons, Mortensen enjoyed three Southern California junior college championships.

During World War II, Mortensen served as a physical education instructor in the Navy pre-Flight training program. He was discharged as a Lt. senior grade early in 1946.

Mortensen returned to Riverside for the spring and fall of 1946 to act as head football coach and dean of men. In 1947, he went to Denver university to become head track coach and freshman football coach. His track team won Denver first Skyline Six title in 1949 and his frosh footballers were undefeated in two years. He developed Jerry Biffle, NCAA champion in the broad jump in 1949, during his stay at Denver.

On Hill's recommendation, Mortensen was appointed track coach at Army in January of 1950. As well as taking the Cadets through indoor and outdoor and cross country seasons, he aided Red Blaik as a football scout.

Mortensen's athletic career began at Gila academy, a religious institution in Thatcher, Arizona. Following a brilliant all-around prep career, he entered Gila junior college. In the period from 1925-27, he lettered in football, basketball and track. On one afternoon, he scored 26 points in the shotput, discus, javelin, high jump, high hurdles and 100-yard dash.

Immediately following his enrollment at Troy in the fall of 1927, Mortensen became a regular on the varsity basketball team and made all-Pacific Coast conference. In the summer of 1928, he just missed making the U.S. Olympic team as a decathlon man. Mortensen placed fifth in the trials at Franklin Field in Philadelphia.

The new Trojan track coach first achieved national recognition by winning the javelin in the 1929 NCAA. Following another season as an all-Pacific Coast basket-baller and Trojan footballer in the 1929-30 seasons, he won the National AAU javelin as Captain of the 1930 track team.

Before being declared ineligible for participation as an amateur because of his coaching connection with Riverside JC, Mortensen set a new world's record for the decathlon in 1931. He scored 8177 in the National AAU finals at Lincoln, Neb., to become the first man to hit the 8000 mark in the sport.

A native of Gila, Arizona, Mortensen was born April 16, 1907. He is married to the former Irene Ross of Riverside. The Mortensens have a daughter Anne, 12, and a son Ross, 9.

TROJAN VARSITY TRACK PROSPECTS-1951

SPRINTS

JOHN BRADIEY: 21, 5:11, 152, Junior, graduated from Glendale Hoover. All-time best marks of 9.7s. and 20.8s., both made in high school where he gained all-American H.S. recognition. State 220 champion two years running. Best last year of 9.9s. and 21.2s. Best race is furlong where he won four dual and triangular meet races last year. Pulled muscle late last season. Majoring in foreign trade.

AL MEJIA: 22, 5:7, 148, Junior, graduated from Fremont High. Transferred from Compton College last year and developed into SC's best century man. Best mark 9.7s. in qualifying for NCAA finals. Won four dual and triangular meet races in 100. Best 220 mark was 21.5s. Won National JC 220 in 1949 in 21.4s. Majoring in physical education.

VERIE SORGEN: best times of 9.9s. (high school) and 21.6s. (frosh). (see broad jump)

NORM STOCKS: best time of 21.6s. in 220. (see quarter-mile)

QUARTER-MILE

NORM STOCKS: 23, 6:0, 160, Senior, graduated from San Diego High. A two-year letterman with best mark last year of 48.8s. Placed fourth in PCC last year. Ran third man on the 1949 Trojan world-record 880-yard relay team. Pulled leg muscle in early practice this year and may be hampered. Majoring in business.

BUD CURRY: 21, 5:11, 155, Senior, graduated from South Gate High. Transferred from Compton College last year and had best time of 48.9s. Ran 48.4s. lap on Trojan distance medley team that set school record in 1950. All-City 440 champion in 50.1s. as prepper. Finished sixth in PCC 440 last year. Majoring in zoology.

NOTE: Sam Nicholson (see broad jump) and Jerry Kincheloe (see high jump) may run 440 this year. No previous recorded times.

HALF-MILE

FRED WEHKING: 20, 5:9, 153, Junior, graduated from Bell High. With the great collection of half-milers at Troy last year, sophomore Wehking did not get much of a chance to perform but still was clocked in lm. 54s. in placing third in the UCIA dual meet. Expected to come into own this year. An NROTC student, he plans a career in the Navy. Former All-City 880 champ in 1947.

LLOYD JEPSON: 20, 5:8, 150, Sophomore, graduated from Benson Tech, Portland, Oregon. Ineligible last year after a great freshman season in 1949, Jepson has three years remaining. Best of lm. 56.5s. as frosh when he was nipped in a dual meet race by Oxy frosh John Barnes. Has mile clocking of 4m. 25.9s. Majoring in general business.

BOB MITCHELL: 23, $5:8\frac{1}{2}$, 130, Senior, graduated from Huntington Park High. A two-year letterman. Best last year of lm. 55.5s. and 4m. 20.9s. in mile. Will run both this year. All-City half-mile champ in 1945. Only man to defeat Newcomb in cross-country in 1949. Majoring in business.

MILE AND TWO-MILE

JIM NEWCOMB: 22, 6:0, 150, Junior, graduated from Benson Tech, Portland, Oregon. One of the greatest sophomore tracksters in history last year, Newcomb ran bests of 4m. 7.7s. and 9m. 6.5s. in the mile and two-mile. The mile mark bettered the school record formerly held by Louis Zamperini. Newcomb was never defeated in high school or at Santa Ana Junior College, where he won national JC mile and two-mile champion-ships in 1949. PCC mile and two-mile champ last year and second in the NCAA two-mile. Second in the AAU 1500 meters in 3m. 52.2s. Majoring in physical education.

ART GARCIA: 20, 5:10, 145, Junior, graduated from San Bernardino High. Transferred from San Bernardino Valley College where he did not run last year. National JC 880 champion in 1948 with best clocking of lm. 58s. Won AAU 5000 meters cross-country championship this fall and is going to concentrate on distance work. Majoring in finance.

GRAY BERG: 24, 5:7, 130, Senior, graduated from Carter Riverside High, Fort Worth, Texas. Lettered last year and rated most improved man for this season. Won Southern Division cross country championship this fall. Best time in two-mile last year 9m. 46.4s. Will probably concentrate on the eight-lapper. Majoring in industrial relations.

HIGH AND LOW HURDLES

ART BARNARD: 21, 6:1, 175, Senior, graduated from La Jolla High. Co-Captain of the 1951 varsity. Placed fourth in the NCAA highs last year and had a best time of 14.2s. Three men who finished ahead of him are not returning this year. Running behind Dick Attlesey last year, he failed to win a race (two heats excepted). This year, however, he should not lose many. Best time in lows of 23.6s. All-CIF hurdles champ in 1947. Majoring in art.

JACK DAVIS: 20, 6:3, 180, Sophomore, graduated from Glendale Hoover High. Former state hurdles champion who has bests (as frosh) of 14.6s. and 23.5s. All-American H.S. prep. Can broad jump if needed with best last year of 23ft. 2in. Majoring in physical education.

KEITH MCDONALD: 20, 6:2, 165, Junior, graduated from George Washington High, Alexandria, Va. Transferred from Duke University and was ineligible last year. Best time of 14.7s. in highs. Best low hurdle time of 24.8s. A NROTC student majoring in engineering.

BILL PETTIS: 19, 6:1 $\frac{1}{2}$, 175, graduated from Long Beach Jordan High. Transferred from Long Beach CC where he was second in National JC highs with best mark of 14.9s. Ran 440 in high school and has a best mark of 49.5s. Has run lows once, clocked in 24.5s. Also ran 220 in 22.1s. around curve last year at Long Beach. Majoring in physical education.

JACK BARNES: Best time of 14.8s. (see high jump)

SHOT PUT

PARRY O'BRIEN: 19, 6:3, 227, Sophomore, graduated from Santa Monica High. Here is the greatest freshman shotputter in American collegiate history. O'Brien, in 1950, had five puts over 52ft. with a best of 53ft. $10\frac{1}{2}$ in. His best mark was made in the Coliseum Relays against the toughest competition, placing him third. Has tremendous speed across the ring for his size. Plays halfback in football. Majoring in business administration.

JESS SWOPE: 23, 6:2, 230, Senior, graduated from Polytechnic High. A three-year letterman who stayed out last season because of injuries. Placed sixth in the 1949 NCAA shot and has a best of 53ft. 1 3/4in. Voted most improved athlete in 1949 and a former freshman record holder. Majoring in physical education.

DISCUS

EIMER WILLHOITE: 20, 6: $1\frac{1}{2}$, 225, Sophomore, graduated from Merced High. Former state shot put champion, had best marks in weights last year of 145ft. 10in. and 49ft. 2in. Varsity letterwinner in football. Majoring in general business.

BROAD JUMP

VERIE SORGEN: 19, 6:1, 165, Sophomore, graduated from Riverside Poly High. Sorgen was one of the finest prep broad jumpers in southland history, leaping 24ft. 4½in. Last year bothered by foot injury and had best of 23ft. 5 3/8in. Holds a scholastic scholarship. Majoring in mathematics.

FRANK FLORES: 21, 5:9, 160, Junior, graduated from Monterey High. Transferred last year from Monterey Peninsula College where he had a best of 23ft. 74in. Last year he was somewhat inconsistent but had a best of 23ft. 5in. A pre-dental student.

SAM NICHOLSON: 21, 5:10, 140, Senior, graduated from Glendale Hoover High. A versatile performer who can sprint, run the low hurdles, broad jump, and this year may concentrate on the 440. Had a best broad jump mark last year of 23ft. $5\frac{1}{2}$ in.

HIGH JUMP

DICK BROMBACH: 21, 6:1, 168, Junior, graduated from Long Beach Poly High. Best of 6ft. 5in. last year in winning California dual meet. Had prep best of 6ft. $4\frac{1}{2}$ in. and tied for state championship in 1949. Majoring in industrial management.

MANUEL RONQUILLO: 19, 6: $4\frac{1}{4}$, 170, Sophomore, graduated from Roosevelt High, Los Angeles. Had a best as frosh of 6ft. $6\frac{1}{4}$ in. Also cleared 6ft. 6in. once, and 6ft. 5in. twice. Never finished lower than second in both freshman and open meets. Majoring in physical education.

JACK BARNES: 23, $6:2\frac{1}{2}$, 180, Senior, graduated from Dorsey High. A two-year letterman who holds school freshman high jump record of 6ft. $6\frac{1}{2}$ in. Had best last year of 6ft. 5in. in winning PCC championship. Tied for first in PCC-Big 10 dual meet at 6ft. $4\frac{1}{4}$ in. Majoring in art.

JERRY KINCHELOE: 20, 6:1, 160, Junior, graduated from Benson Tech, Portland, Oregon. Best last year of 6ft. 3in. May concentrate on 440 this year. Majoring in physical education.

-8-

POLE VAULT

WALT JENSEN: 22, $6:\frac{1}{2}$, 158, Senior, graduated from Alameda High. Transferred last year from Modesto JC where he was national JC champion and had a best last year of 14ft. 4in. Tied for fifth in the NCAA meet. Majoring in physical education. Holds national JC record of 14ft. $3\frac{1}{2}$ in.

JOHN ROWAN: 27, $5:8\frac{1}{2}$, 145, Senior, graduated from Maui High, Hawaiian Islands. Co-Captain of the 1951 varsity. Best last year of 14ft. Tied for fifth in the NCAA meet. 1949 best also of 14ft. Majoring in physical education.

FRANK JOHNSON: 21, 6:2, 180, Senior, graduated from Washington High. A 1949 letterman who stayed out last year and has two years of eligibility remaining. Best of 13ft. 6in. Set SC-UCLA frosh meet record of 13ft. 6in. Majoring in physical education.

JAVELIN

LARRY GOINS: 20, 6:1, 190, Senior, graduated from Pasadena High. Transferred last year from Pasadena CC and had a best of 204ft. 11 3/4in. Majoring in physical education. Ineligible at the start of the season.

BOB HOOKS: 20, 6:1, 210, Sophomore, graduated from Washington High. Attended SC as a freshman in 1948, then transferred last semester to El Camino JC where he played football. Has thrown the javelin over 200 feet in practice. Majoring in general business.

DICK GENTHER: 19, 5:10, 196, Sophomore, graduated from Allentown, Pa. High. Did not compete as a freshman because of football injuries. Has a high school best of 180ft. Majoring in physical education.

BREAKDOWN BY EVENTS

Sprints--John Bradley
Al Mejia
Verle Sorgen
Bill Pettis
Norm Stocks (220)

Distances--Jim Newcomb
Art Garcia
Bob Mitchell
Gray Berg
Jack Knibb

Broad Jump--Verle Sorgen
Frank Flores
Sam Nicholson
Jack Davis

Javelin--Larry Goins Dick Genther Bob Hooks Harold Small 440--Norm Stocks
Bud Curry
Sam Nicholson
Bill Pettis
Jerry Kincheloe

Hurdles--Art Barnard
Jack Davis
Keith McDonald
Bill Pettis
Jack Barnes

High Jump--Jack Barnes
Dick Brombach
Manuel Ronquillo
Jerry Kincheloe

880--Fred Wehking Art Garcia Lloyd Jepson Bob Mitchell

Pole Vault--John Rowan
Walt Jensen
Frank Johnson
Fred Wolcott
Hugh Kelley

Weights--Parry O'Brien
Jess Swope
Elmer Willhoite
FRED MARYS 7
133-1 3-24-51

PERFORMANCES BY TROJANS IN 1950

	SPRINTS		DISTANCES (Continued)
John Bradley		Lloyd Jepson	(Unat., 1950)
10.1	2nd vs Occidental 3/4	1:56.5	2nd vs Occid.Frosh ('49) 3/3
(220) 10.1, 21.6	3rd vs Occidental 3/4 3rd vs Ariz State 3/18 2nd vs SJS, FS 4/1	Jim Newcomb	
10.1 21.6 10.0	lst vs SJS, FS 4/1 3rd vs Stanford 4/8	9:36.8 9:31.1	lst vs Stanford 4/8 lst vs California 4/22
* 21.1 (100)	1st vs Stanford 4/8 3rd vs California 4/22	9:22.9 9:39.6	1st vs MS, Yale 4/29 1st vs UCLA 5/6 1st vs UCLA 5/6
(220)	2nd vs California 4/22 2nd vs Mich State, Yale 4/2 1st vs Mich State, Yale 4/2	4:17.6 29 9:06.5	2nd Coliseum Rlys 5/19 1st PCC 5/27
21.5	1st vs UCLA 5/6	9:25.2 9:12.5	1st PCC 5/27 1st Compton Inv. 6/2
<u>Q1</u>	JARTER-MILE	4:07.7 9:14.1	1st SPAAU 6/9 2nd NCAA 6/17
Norman Stock	5	3:52.2 4:11.7 9:18.5	2nd AAU (1500m) 3rd PCC vs Big 10 6/20 2nd PCC vs Big 10 6/20
51.5 50.7	2nd vs Occidental 3/4 4th vs Ariz State 3/18	1:53.5	4th OSLO (800m) 7/6 1st OSLO (1500m) 7/7
49.6	3rd vs SJS, FS 4/1 3rd vs Stanford 4/8	3:59.2 1:54.6	1st AMOT (1500m) 7/9 3rd TRONDHEIM (800m) 7/12 1st TRONDHEIM (1500m) 7/12
49.3 49.0	lst vs California 4/22 2nd vs Mich.State, Yale 4/2 1st vs UCLA 5/6	3:57.5 9 4:01.3 3:55.2	1st ALESUND (1500m) 7/14 1st BERGEN (1500m) 7/17
49.8 48.8 49.2	1st PCC (heat) 5/26 4th PCC 5/27	8:32.0 4:15.8	lst BERGEN (3000m) 7/18 lst Oregon AAU 6/3
21.6 (440)	3rd PCC (heat) 5/26 3rd SPAAU 6/9	Bob Mitchell	
Bud Curry		4:25.6	3rd vs Occidental 3/4 4th IB Rlys 3/11
50.3 49.9	2nd vs Ariz.State 3/18 3rd vs UCLA 5/6	4:20.8	2nd vs Stanford 4/8 2nd vs UCLA 5/6
48.9	2nd PCC (heat) 5/26 6th PCC 5/27	4:23.8 -4:23.7 -4:25.0	vs SJS, FS 4/1 2nd Coliseum Rlys 5/19 4th vs Cal. 4/22
50.0	4th vs Cal. 4/22	1:55.5	5th vs MS, Yale, 4/29
DI	STANCES		San Bernardino JC)
Fred Wehking		1:58.0 (49)	lst Nat'l JC (heat) 2nd Nat'l JC 5/27/49
1:55.5 - 1:56.7 - 1:54.0 - 1:57.6	4th vs Cal 4/22 3rd vs SJS, FS 4/1 3rd vs UCLA 5/6 4th vs Stanford 4/1		

^{(*} timers missed gun flash)

DISTANCES (Continued)

DISTANCES (Continued)

Gray Berg		Jack Barnes	
9:51.2 10:00.6 9:52.6 9:46.4 9:52.0 9:54.0	2nd vs Occidental 3/4 lst vs Ariz.State 3/18 2nd vs SJS, FS 4/1 3rd vs Stanford 4/8 3rd vs UCLA 5/6 4th vs California 4/22	14.8 15.0	lst Long Beach Rlys(heat) 3/12 5th vs Ariz.State 3/18 3rd West Coast Rlys(heat) 5/12 2nd Calif.Rlys(heat) 5/20 HIGH JUMP
	HURDLES	Jack Barnes	
Art Barnard 15.0 14.7 14.5 14.5 14.5 14.5 14.3 14.3 14.4 14.6 14.2 14.4 14.6 14.2 14.4 23.9 24.1 24.0	2nd vs Occidental 3/4 2nd Long Beach Rlys 3/11 3rd vs Ariz.State 3/18 2nd vs Mich.St., Yale 4/29 3rd vs UCLA 5/6 1st West Coast Rlys(heat) 3rd West Coast Rlys 5/13 4th Coliseum Rlys 5/19 3rd California Rlys 5/20 2nd PCC (heat) 5/26 2nd PCC 5/27 3rd Compton Inv 6/2 2nd SPAAU 6/9 1st NCAA (heat) 6/16 4th NCAA 6/17 4th PCC vs Big 10 6/20 3rd vs SJS, FS 4/1 2nd vs Ariz.State 3/18 2nd vs Stanford 4/8 3rd PCC (heat) 5/26 4th PCC 5/27 3rd Compton Inv. 6/2 3rd SPAAU 6/9	614"	3rd(tie) LB Rlys 3/11 lst(tie)vs Ariz.State 3/18 4th(tie)vs SJS, FS 4/1 lst vs Stanford 4/8 2nd vs California 4/22 lst(tie)vs MS, Yale 4/29 2nd(tie)Coliseum Rlys 5/19 lst PCC 5/27 9th(tie)NCAA 6/17 lst(tie)PCC vs Big 10 6/20 Nat'l.AAU 6/24 h lst vs Occidental 3/4 3rd(tie)LB Rlys 3/11 lst(tie)vs Ariz.State 3/18 2nd vs SJS, FS 4/1 3rd(tie)vs Stanford 4/8 lst vs California 4/22 lst(tie)vs MS, Yale 4/29 lst vs UCLA 5/6 2nd(tie)West Coast Rlys 5/12 5th(tie)PCC 5/27 9th(tie)NCAA 6/17
24.3 (1t)	2nd NCAA (heat) 6/16 8th NCAA 6/17	Manuel Ronqu	illo (SC Frosh)
Jack Davis 14.9w23.9w 15.2, 24.7 15.4,25.8(1 14.8w23.6w 15.5, 24.4 15.1, 25.0 14.6 23.5 (lows, lt)	t)lst vs LACC 3/24	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	lst vs Occidental Frosh 3/3 lst(tie)LB Rlys 3/11 lst vs Mt SA 3/14 lst vs Compton, SA 3/17 lst vs LACC 3/24 lst vs ELAJC 4/21 lst vs Santa Ana 4/11 lst vs Riverside 4/7 lst vs SB, CP, LaVerne 4/26 lst vs UCLA Frosh 5/6 2nd(tie) WC Rlys 5/12

HIGH JUMP (Continued)

POLE VAULT

Manuel Ronqui	llo (Continued)	Walt Jensen	
61411	2nd(tie) Coliseum Rlys 5/19 2nd California Rlys 5/20 1st(tie)JC-Fr Div Cal	13' 13'6" 13' 14'	2nd(tie) vs Occidental 3/4 lst(tie) vs SJS, FS 4/1 3rd(tie) vs Stanford 4/8 lst vs MS, Yale 4/29
		13'6" 13'6" 13'6"	lst(tie) vs California 4/22 lst(tie) vs UCLA 5/6 5th(tie) West Coast Rlys 5/14
Jerry Kinchel	oe	14'4" (Unplaced PC	3rd California Rlys 5/2l
61211	2nd(tie)vs Occidental 3/4 3rd vs SJS, FS 4/1 2nd vs Stanford 4/8 lst(tie)vs MS, Yale 4/29 2nd(tie)vs UCLA 5/6	1319" 1414" 1316" 141 1316"	2nd(tie) Compton Inv 6/2 1st(tie) SPAAU 6/9 5th(tie) NCAA 6/17 2nd(tie) PCC vs Big 10 6/20 5th(tie) AAU 6/24
		Jack Rowan	
	BROAD JUMP	13' 13'	2nd(tie) vs Occidental 3/4 Long Beach Rlys 3/11
22'8" Frank Flores 22'4" 21'9½" 22'4" 23'5" 21'11½"	3rd vs Ariz. State 3/18 1st vs SJS, FS 4/1 3rd vs Stanford 4/8 3rd vs California 4/22 2nd vs MS, Yale 4/29 2nd vs UCLA 5/6 5th West Coast Rlys 5/12 4th Compton Inv 6/2 PCC	13'5" 13'6" 13'6" 13'6" 13'6" 13'6" 13'6" 13'6" 13'6" 13'6" 13'6" 13'6" 13'6" 13'6"	lst vs Ariz.State 3/18 lst(tie) vs SJS, FS 4/1 lst(tie) vs Stanford 4/8 lst(tie) vs California 4/22 3rd(tie) vs MS, Yale 4/29 lst(tie) vs UCLA 5/6 5th(tie) Coliseum Rlys 5/20 4th(tie) California Rlys 5/21 5th(tie) PCC 5/27 2nd(tie) Compton Inv 6/2 4th SPAAU 6/9 5th(tie) NCAA 6/18 5th(tie) AAU 6/24 SHOT PUT
Verle Sorgen 2313" 2212" 2315"		50'7½" (1949 recor 50'4" 49' 50'1¼" 47'10 3/4" 51'2 3/4" 51'5½ 50'3½" 51'11 3/4" 50'7 3/4" 50'10¼"	하지만 것 같아 보다 하는 것이 없는 것이 없다.

SHOT PUT (continued)

DISCUS THROW

Jess	Swope	(continued)
<u>Jess</u>	Dwohe	(continued)

5117 3/8"		Coliseum Rlys 5/20	
51'102"		California Rlys 5/21	9
51'8"	4th	PCC 5/28	
5212"	2nd	Compton Inv 6/3	
53'1 3/4"	2nd	Inglewood Inv 6/4	
52192"	6th	NCAA 6/18	
521 5/8"	2nd	JR AAU 6/24	B
5017=11	lst	Oregon AAA 6/3	40
			4

Parry O'Brien (SC Frosh)

51 1 1 1 1 1 1	lst	vs Occid Frosh 3/3
5112"	lst	vs Muir, LB 3/10
49'11"	lst	vs Mt. SA 3/14
5014"	lst	vs Comp, SA 3/17
50'1 3/4"	lst	vs ELAJC 4/21
48'10 3/4"	lst	vs LACC 3/24
481114"	lst	vs Santa Ana 4/11
501211	lst	vs SB, CP, LV 4/26
5212 3/4"		vs UCLA Frosh 5/6
5218211		WC Rlys 5/12
53110=11	3rd	Coliseum Rlys 5/19
50'11"		JC-Fr Div Cal Rlys 5/20
5212"	3rd	Compton Inv 6/2
5315"	2nd	SPAAU 6/9

Sim Iness

156'5"		vs Occidental 3/4
160'1 3/4"		LB Rlys 3/11
15417"	lst	vs Ariz State 3/18
15418 3/8"	lst	vs SJS, FS 4/1
164'114	lst	vs Stanford 4/8
161 8 1 11	lst	vs California 4/22
168162"	lst	vs MS, Yale 4/29
156'11 3/4"	4th	WC Rlys 5/12
161182"	2nd	Coliseum Rlys 5/19
16017"	2nd	California Rlys 5/20
15915 3/4"	lst	vs UCLA 5/6
157'114"	2nd	PCC 5/27
164'7 3/4"	2nd	Compton Inv 6/2
17112 5/8"	2nd	NCAA 6/17
154'3"	4th	PCC vs Big 10 6/20
157'	7th	AAU 6/24

Willhoite (SC Frosh)

145'10"	(Unplaced)LB Rlys 3/11
135'11"	1st vs Mt. SA 3/14
138'2"	1st vs Comp, SA 3/17
14416"	1st vs LACC 3/24

JAVELIN THROW

Bob VanDoren

4916 1/8"	1st vs Occidental 3/4
(Unplaced)	Long Beach Rlys
491 11	1st vs Ariz State 3/18
49'104"	1st vs SJS, FS 4/1
4815"	5th vs Stanford 4/8
491 3/8"	1st vs California 4/22
48'10 3/4"	4th vs MS, Yale 4/29
481 3/4"	3rd vs UCLA 5/6
481811	8th WC Rlys 5/12

Elmer Willhoite (SC Frosh)

48 111 11 11		Occid Frosh 3/3
4912"	2nd vs	Mt. SA 3/14
48'10"	2nd vs	Comp, SA 3/17
481911	4th LE	Rlys 3/11
	2nd vs	LACC 3/24
		ELAJC 4/21
46'11"	1st vs	Riverside 4/7
4.51	3rd vs	UCLA Frosh 5/6

Larry Goins

176'4\frac{1}{4}" 196'10" 192'1" 204'11 3/4" 192'10" 200'1" 197'8\frac{1}{2}" 187'4\frac{1}{2}" 199'11\frac{1}{2}"	2nd vs Occidental 3/4 (Unplaced) LB Rlys 3/11 2nd vs Ariz State 3/18 lst vs SJS, FS 4/1 2nd vs Stanford 4/8 2nd vs California 4/22 lst vs MS, Yale 4/29 3rd vs UCLA 5/6 6th WC Rlys 5/12 (Unplaced) Calif Place 5/20
— 185'	(Unplaced)Calif.Rlys 5/20

TROJAN CHAMPIONS AND CHAMPIONSHIPS

Olympic Champions:

1912--Stockholm--Fred Kelly, 110m. hurdles

1920--Antwerp--Charles Paddock, 100m. dash

1924--Paris--Clarence (Bud) Houser, shot put and discus throw

1928--Amsterdam--Clarence (Bud) Houser, discus throw

1932-Los Angeles--Duncan McNaughton (Canadian team), high jump

1936--Berlin--Kenneth Carpenter, discus throw

Earle Meadows, pole vault

1948--London--Mel Fatton, 200m. dash Wilbur Thompson, shot put

Members of American Olympic teams:

1912--Fred Kelly, high hurdles

1920--Charles Paddock, sprints; George Schiller, 400m; Roy Evans, discus

1924--Clarence Houser, weights; Norm Anderson, weights; Charles Paddock, sprints;
Morton Kaer, pentathlon; Otto Anderson, decathlon; Earle Wilson, hop-step-jump

---0---

1928--Clarence Houser, weights; Charles Paddock, sprints; Lee Barnes, pole vault;
Charles Borah, sprint relay; James Stewart, decathlon; Leighton Dye, high hurdles
1932--Frank Wykoff, sprint relay; Ed Ablowich, 1600m. relay; Dick Barber, broad jump;

Bill Graber, pole vault; Bob Van Osdel, high jump

1936--Frank Wykoff, 100m. and sprint relay; Foy Draper, sprint relay; Hal Smallwood, 400m; Al Fitch, 1600m. relay; Roy Staley, highs; Bill Graber, pole vault; Earle Meadows, pole vault; Bill Sefton, pole vault; Delos Thurber, high jump; Kenneth Carpenter, discus.

1948-Mel Patton, 100m. and 200m. dashes and 400m. relay; Cliff Bourland, 200m. and 1600m. relay; Bob Chambers, 800m.; Roland Sink, 1500m.; Wilbur Thompson, shot put

---0---

---0---

Championship teams:

Nine I-C-4-A championship teams (last seven times competed) until S.C. resigned membership in 1939.

Fourteen NGAA championship teams (including nine in a row, 1935-43).

38 individual NCAA champions (including ties)

39 individual IC4A champions (including ties and relay team)

39 individual national senior AAU champions (including ties)

World record holders, past and present:

100-Charles Paddock, Frank Wykoff and Mel Patton

220--Charles Paddock*, Mel Patton

440--Vic Williams (tie)

Highs--Fred Kelly, Phil Cope and Roy Staley (tie), Dick Attlesey.

Lows--Norman Paul (tie)

Discus--Bud Houser

Pole vault--Lee Barnes, Bill Graber, Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows

Teams in the 440, 880, and mile relay distances

(*Paddock set number of world sprint records at odd distances; several of above also held records at metric distances)

---0---

Trojan track teams have lost only three dual meets to college rivals from 1930 to 1950; won all Pacific Coast Conference meets, 1936-50.

TROJAN RECORD IN PAST CHAMPIONSHIP MEETS

Year	<u>N.C.A.A.</u> *	P.C.C.	<u>I.C. 4-A</u>
1923 1924 1925	Eighth, 24		Sixth, 14 First, 33
1926 1927 1928	First, 55	Second, 41 Second, 53 1/2 Fourth, 24	First, 35 1/2 Fourth, 23 Sixteenth, 6
1929 1930 1931	Fourth, 32 First, 55 27/70 First, 77 1/7	#First, 71 1/2 #First, 78 13/15 #First, 93	Second, 21 First, 44 1/4 First, 46 6/7
1932 1933 1934	Second, 54 Second, 57 7/20	#First, 85 1/6	First, 62 3/4 First, 47
1935 1936 1937	First, 74 1/5 First, 104 1/3 First, 64	#First, 68 5/6 First, 53 1/4 First, 55	First, 51
1938 1939 1940	First, 67 3/4 First, 86 First, 47 1/4	First, 63 3/5 First, 67 First, 55	First, 46 1/2 First, 71 1/2 (resigned)
1941 1942 1943	First, 81 1/2 First, 85 1/2 First, 46	First, 72 First, 79	
1944 1945	Second 42.7/20	#First, 76 #First, 69	
1947 1948 1949	Second, 34 1/6 Second, 41 1/2 First, 55 2/5	First, 47 1/2 First, 71 1/2 First, 62 1/5	
1945 1946 1947 1948	Second, 41 1/2	#First, 69 First, 47 1/2	

*Present-scoring method utilized in N.C.A.A. results.

#California Intercollegiates meet.

* * * *

Southern California has lost only three dual meets to college opponents since 1930-Stanford in 1933, California in 1943 and Caltech in 1945.

#

How Trojans scored in 1950 National Collegiate Championships, Minneapolis.

120-yard highs--Dick Attlesey, first
220-yard lows--Dick Attlesey, second
Discus throw--Sim Iness, second
Broad jump--Henry Aihara, second
Two-mile--Jim Newcomb, second
120-yard highs--Art Barnard, fourth
Mile--Wally Wilson--fifth
Pole vault--Jack Rowan and Walt Jensen, tie fifth

TROJAN NATIONAL COLLEGIATE CHAMPIONS

- 1923--Norm Anderson, shot put, 46 ft. 8 in.
- 1926--Bud Houser, discus, 148 ft. 11 3/4 in.
- 1929--Jess Mortensen, javelin, 203 ft. 7 3/4 in.
- 1930--Frank Wykoff, 100, 9.4s.; Jim Stewart, high jump, 6 ft. 3 3/4 in.
- 1931--Frank Wykoff, 100, 9.6s.; Vic Williams, 440, 48.3s.;
 Bill Graber, pole vault (tie), 13 ft. 10 5/16 in.;
 Bob Hall, shot put, 49 ft. 9 in., and discus, 152 ft. $7\frac{1}{2}$ in.
- 1933--Duncan McNaughton, high jump (tie), 6 ft. 4 in.; Bill Graber, pole vault (tie), 13 ft. 11 1/16 in.
- 1934--Al Olson, broad jump, 25 ft. $4\frac{1}{4}$ in.
- 1935-Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows, pole vault (tie), 14 ft. 1 1/8 in.; Ken Carpenter, discus, 157 ft. $11\frac{1}{4}$ in.
- 1936-Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows, pole vault (tie), 14 ft. 1 3/4 in.; Ken Carpenter, discus, 173 ft.
- 1937--Earl Vickery, low hurdles, 23.3s.;
 Bill Sefton, pole vault, 14 ft. 8 7/8 in.
- 1938--Louis Zamperini, mile, 4m. 8.3s.; Loring Day, pole vault, 14 ft. 2 in.
- 1939--Erwin Miller, 440, 47.5s.; Louis Zamperini, mile, 4m. 13.6s.; John Wilson, high jump, 6 ft. 6 in.; Bob Peoples, javelin, 220 ft. 6 in.
- 1940--John Wilson, high jump (tie), 6 ft. 6 3/8 in.; Ken Dills, pole vault, 13 ft. 10 in.
- 1941--Hubert Kerns, 440, 46.6s.
- 1942--Cliff Bourland, 440, 48.2s.
- 1943--Cliff Bourland, 440, 48.5s.
- 1947--Mel Patton, 100, 9.7s.; Bob Hart, pole vault (tie), 14 ft.
- 1948-Mel Patton, 100 meters, 10.4s.; Patton, 200 meters, 20.7s.
- 1949--Mel Patton, 100 yards, 9.7s; Patton, 220 yards, 20.4s.
- 1950--Dick Attlesey, 120 yard highs, 14s.

TROJAN NATIONAL A.A.U. CHAMPIONS

- 1913--Fred Kelly, high hurdles, 16.4s.
- 1920--Charles Faddock, 220, 21.4s.
- 1921-Charles Paddock, 100, 9.6s., and 220, 21.8s.
- 1924--Charles Paddock, 100, 9.6s., and 220, 20.8s.
- 1925-Bud Houser, shot put, 50 ft. 1 in., and discus, 156 ft. 6 in.
- 1926--Charles Borah, 100, 9.8s.; Leighton Dye, high hurdles, 14.6s; Kenneth Grumbles, low hurdles, 24s.; Bud Houser, discus, 153 ft. 6 in.
- 1927--Charles Borah, 220, 21.6s; Lee Barnes, pole vault, 13 ft.
- 1928--Charles Borah, 200 meters, 21.4s.; Lee Barnes, pole vault, 13 ft. 9 in Bud Houser, discus, 153 ft. $6\frac{1}{4}$ in.
- 1929--Jess Mortensen, javelin, 204.975 ft.
- 1930--Vic Williams, 440, 48.4s.
- 1931--Frank Wykoff, 100, 9.5s.; Vic Williams, 440, 48.8s.; Jess Mortensen, decathlon, 8166.663 points.
- 1932--Bob Van Osdel, high jump (tie), 6 ft. 6 5/8 in.; Bill Graber, pole vault, 14 ft. 4 3/8 in.
- 1934--Bill Graber, pole vault, 13 ft. 11 3/8 in.
- 1935--Earle Meadows and Bill Sefton, pole vault (tie), 13 ft. 10 3/8 in.; Ken Carpenter, discus, 158 ft. 11 in.
- 1936--Hal Smallwood, 400 meters, 47.3s.; Ken Carpenter, discus, 166 ft. 2 in.
- 1937--Earle Meadows and Bill Sefton, pole vault (tie), 14 ft. 7 5/8 in.
- 1939--Erwin Miller, 400 meters, 48.3s.
- 1942--Cliff Bourland, 400 meters, 46.7s.; Walt Smith, 400 meter hurdles, 52s.
- 1943--Cliff Bourland, 400 meters, 47.7s.
- 1944--Earl Audet, shot put, 52 ft. 8 in.
- 1945--Roland Sink, 1500 meters, 3 m. 58.4s.
- 1947--Walt Smith, 400 meter hurdles, 52.3s.
- 1950--Dick Attlesey, 110 meter highs, 13.6s.

TROJAN VARSITY RECORDS

100--9.3s., Mel Patton, May 15, 1948 (world record)

220--20.2s., Mel Patton, May 7, 1949 (world record)

440--46.6s., Hubert Kerns, June 21, 1941

880--lm.52s., Bob Pruitt, April 29, 1950

Mile--4m.7.7s., Jim Newcomb, June 9, 1950

Two-mile--9m.4.6s., Leroy Weed, May 2, 1942

High Hurdles-13.5s., Dick Attlesey, May 13, 1950

Low Hurdles--22.7s., Earl Vickery, April 22, 1939

Shot Put--54ft. 42in., Earl Audet, May 27, 1944

Discus--174ft. 1 13/64in., Ken Carpenter, August 17, 1936

Javelin--234ft. $3\frac{1}{2}$ in., Bob Peoples, May 17, 1941

High Jump--6ft. 93/8in., John Wilson, April 27, 1940

Broad Jump--25ft. 8 7/8in., Al Olson, June 22, 1935

Pole Vault--14ft. llin., Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows, May 29, 1937

TROJAN RELAY RECORDS

- Four-man 440 relay--40.5s., Lee Lafond, Mickey Anderson, Payton Jordan, Adrian Talley, May 14, 1938 (world record).
- Four-man 880 relay--lm. 24s., George Pasquali, Ron Frazier, Norm Stocks, Mel Patton, May 20, 1949 (world record).
- Four-man mile relay-3m. 9.4s., Warren Smith, Howard Upton, Cliff Bourland, Hubert Kerns, June 17, 1941 (equal to world record).
- Four-man two-mile relay--7m. 39.7s., Bob Mitchell, Wally Wilson, Bob Pruitt, Bob Chambers, May 14, 1949.
- 480-yard shuttle hurdle relay--58.9s., Don Halderman, Art Barnard, Al Lawrence, Dick Attlesey, June 2, 1950.
- Distance medley relay (440-880-1320-Mile)--10m.ls., Bud Curry, Fred Wehking, Wilford Bailie, Jim Newcomb, May 20, 1950.

LOS ANGELES COLISEUM RECORDS

100--9.5s., Charles Paddock, L.A.A.C., May 15, 1926; Frank Wykoff, SC, May 16, 1931; Mel Patton, SC, May 23, 1947 and June 17, 1949; Andy Stanfield, Seton Hall, May 19, 1950.

220-20.4s., Mel Patton, SC, May 3, 1947; May 23, 1947 and June 18, 1949.

440--46.9s., Lee Orr, Washington State, May 25, 1940; Cliff Bourland, SC, May 23, 1942; Bill Parker, Occidental, June 9, 1950.

880--lm. 50.3s., Mal Whitfield, Ohio State, June 18, 1949.

Mile-4m. 7.7s., Jim Newcomb, SC, June 9, 1950.

Two-Mile--8m. 53.9s., Gunder Hagg, Sweden, July 10, 1943.

High Hurdles--13.9s., Craig Dixon, UCLA, June 18, 1949; Dick Attlesey, SC, May 19, 1950.

Low Hurdles-22.7s., Glen Hardin, Louisiana State, June 23, 1934; Earl Vickery, SC, April 22, 1939; Bill Porter, Northwestern, May 23, 1947; Craig Dixon, UCLA, June 18, 1949.

Shot Put-58ft. $5\frac{1}{2}$ in., Jim Fuchs, Yale, April 29, 1950.

Discus--180ft. Sin., Fortune Gordien, ex-Minnesota, May 20, 1949.

Javelin--238ft. 7in., Matti Jarvinen, Finland, August 4, 1932.

High Jump -- 6ft. Ilin., Les Steers, Oregon, June 17, 1941.

Broad Jump--25ft. 5 3/4in., Jesse Owens, Ohio State, June 15, 1935.

Pole Vault--15ft., Cornelius Warmerdam, Olympic Club, May 24, 1941.

440-yard Relay--40.6s., Austin A.C. (Texas U.), May 23, 1947.

880-yard Relay--lm. 24s., Southern California, May 20, 1949.

Mile Relay -- 3m. 9.4s., University of California, June 17, 1941.

Two-mile Relay--7m. 31.8s., Michigan State, May 19, 1950.

TROJAN-U.C.L.A. MEET RECORDS

100--9.6s., Mel Patton, S.C., 1947 (9.1s. aided by wind, 1949)

200--20.2s., Mel Patton, S.C., 1949 (world record)

440--47.4s., Erwin Miller, S.C., 1939

880--lm. 53.3s., Wally Wilson, S.C., 1950

Mile-4m. 15.3s., Roland Sink, S.C., 1946

Two-mile--9m. 12.8s., Louis Zamperini, S.C., 1939

High Hurdles--14.2s., Dick Attlesey, S.C., 1950

Low Hurdles-22.7s., Earl Vickery, S.C., 1939

Shot Put-53ft. 54in., Jerry Shipkey, U.C.L.A., 1948

Discus-162ft. $5\frac{1}{2}$ in., Taylor Lewis, U.C.L.A., 1949

Javelin--213ft. 81/2in., Cy Young, S.C., 1950

High Jump--6ft. 9 3/8in., John Wilson, S.C., 1940

Broad Jump-24ft. $11\frac{1}{2}$ in., Al Lawrence, S.C., 1946

Pole Vault-14ft. 7in., Loring Day, S.C., 1938

Mile Relay--3m. 15s., S.C. 1934 team (Robert Reed, James Guthrie, Harry Tompkins, John McCarthy); and 1942 S.C. team (Marshall Cromwell, Hubie Kerns, John Wachtler, Cliff Bourland)

Last year's score: S.C. 120, U.C.L.A. 11

Series began in 1934; U.C.L.A. has never defeated S.C. in dual track.

TROJAN-CALIFORNIA MEET RECORDS

100--9.5s., Bob Kiesel, California, 1934

220--20.8s., Charles Paddock, S.C., 1921

440--47.3s., Cliff Bourland, S.C., 1942

880--lm. 53.2s., Louis Zamperini, S.C., 1939, and Warren Smith, S.C., 1941

Mile--4m. 13.2s., Roland Sink, 1948

Two-mile--9m. 21.2s., Leroy Weed, S.C., 1942

High hurdles--14.3s., Phil Cope, S.C., 1936

Low hurdles--23.2s., Earl Vickery, S.C., 1939, and Ron Frazier, S.C., 1947

Shot put--52 ft. $\frac{1}{2}$ in., Bill Bayless, S.C., 1949

Discus--163 ft. 8 1/4 in., Ken Carpenter, S.C., 1936

Javelin--229 ft. 4 in., Bob Peoples, S.C., 1941

High jump--6 ft. 6 3/8 in., John Wilson, S.C., 1940

Broad jump--24 ft. 8 1/2 in., Guy Manuel, California, 1938

Pole vault--14 ft. 7 3/8 in., Bill Sefton, S.C., 1937

Mile relay--3m. 14.8s., S.C. 1942 team (Bill Callis, John Wachtler, Hubie Kerns, Cliff Bourland)

Series began in 1907.

Last year's score: S.C. $88\frac{1}{12}$, California $42\frac{11}{12}$

California last defeated S.C. in 1943 and previous to that had last defeated S.C. in 1924.

TROJAN-STANFORD MEET RECORDS

100--9.6s., Charles Paddock, S.C., 1921; Hector Dyer, Stanford, 1930, and Mel Patton, S.C., 1948 and 1949

220--20.9s., Foy Draper, S.C., 1934

440--47.1s., Ben Eastman, Stanford, 1932

880--lm. 53.5s., Ross Bush, S.C., 1935

Mile--4m. 11.5s., Paul Moore, Stanford, 1940

Two-mile--9m. 22.4s., Roland Sink, S.C., 1946

High Hurdles--14.2s., Phil Cope, S.C., 1936

Low hurdles--23s., Norman Paul, S.C., 1933

Shot put--55 ft. 3 3/4 in., Stan Andersen, Stanford, 1940

Discus--165 ft. 1/2 in., Ken Carpenter, S.C., 1936

Javelin--229 ft., 7 in., Bob Peoples, S.C., 1941

High jump--6 ft. 8 in., John Wilson, S.C., 1940

Broad jump--24 ft. 11 in., Dick Barber, S.C., 1931

Pole vault--14 ft. 8 1/2 in., Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows, S.C., 1937

Mile relay--3m. 13.1s., S.C. 1942 team (Hubie Kerns, Jim Thomas, John Wachtler, Cliff Bourland)

Last year's score: S.C. 95 5/6, Stanford 35 1/6

Stanford last defeated S.C. in 1933

Series began in 1907

TROJAN-OCCIDENTAL MEET RECORDS

100--9.6s., Frank Wykoff, S.C., 1932

220-21s., Payton Jordan, S.C., 1938

440--49s., Bill Parker, Oxy, 1947

880--1m. 53.9s., John Barnes, Oxy, 1950

Mile--4m. 15s., Roland Sink, S.C., 1946

Two-mile--9m. 14.9s., Roland Sink, S.C., 1947

High hurdles--14.5s., Dick Attlesey, S.C., 1947

Low hurdles--23.8s, Norman Paul, S.C., 1933

Shot put--51 ft. 1/4 in., Earl Audet, S.C., 1944

Discus--156ft. 5in., Sim Iness, S.C., 1950

Javelin--211 ft. 9 in., Bob People's, S.C., 1939

High jump--6 ft. 7 in., John Wilson, S.C., 1939

Broad jump--24 ft. 2 1/2 in., Dick Barber, S.C., 1931

Pole vault--14 ft. 3 in., Loring Day, S.C., 1939

Mile relay--3m. 19.5s., S.C. 1947 team (Art Aiello, Bob Chambers, Jim Slosson, Wells DeLoach)

Last year's score: S.C. 84, Oxy 52

S.C.-Occidental dual track rivalry is Troy's oldest, dating back to before 1895; many meets in recent years have been held on handicap basis and all marks noted above are scratch performances.

SOUTHERN PACIFIC A.A.U. RECORDS

100--9.4s., Frank Wykoff, S.C., May 10, 1930

220--20.2s., Mel Patton, S.C., May 7, 1949

440--46.9s., Cliff Bourland, S.C., May 23, 1942; and Bill Parker, Occidental, June 9, 1950

880--lm. 51.1s., John Barnes, Occidental, June 9, 1950

Mile--4m. 7.7s., Jim Newcomb, S.C., June 9, 1950

Two-mile--9m. 2s., Bob McMillen, unattached, May 19, 1950

High Hurdles--13.7s., Dick Attlesey, S.C., June 2, 1950

Low Hurdles-22.7s., Earl Vickery, S.C., April 22, 1939, and Craig Dixon, UCLA, June 18, 1949

Shot Put--55ft. 5 3/8in., Wilbur Thompson, LAAC, May 19, 1950

Discus--170ft. 5 1/8in., Taylor Lewis, UCLA, April 23, 1949

Javelin--237ft. 8in., Dr. Steve Seymour, LAAC, May 21, 1948

High Jump--6ft. 9 3/8in., John Wilson, S.C., April 27, 1940

Broad Jump--25ft. 61in., Jackie Robinson, Pasadena JC, May 7, 1938

Pole Vault--14ft. llin., Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows, S.C., May 29, 1937

Hop-Step-Jump--Levi Casey, LAAC, July 2, 1932

PACIFIC COAST CONFERENCE MEET RECORDS

100--9.6s., Clyde Jeffrey, Stanford, 1939; Hal Davis, California, 1942; and Don Anderson, California, 1948.

220-21s., Charles Borah, S.C., 1927; Clyde Jeffrey, Stanford, 1939-40; and Don Anderson, California, 1950.

440--46.4s., Grover Klemmer, California, 1941

880--lm. 51.7s., William Dale, Washington State, 1941

Mile--4m. 9.3s., Phil Leibowitz, Idaho, 1941

Two-mile--9m. 12.5s., Dixon Garner, Washington State, 1940

High hurdles--14s., Dick Attlesey, SC, 1950

Low hurdles--23.ls., Dick Attlesey, SC, 1950

Shot put--57ft. 4 3/8in., Otis Chandler, Stanford, 1950

Discus-170ft. 10 5/8in., Phil Levy (Fox), Stanford, 1936

Javelin--23lft. lin., Bob Peoples, SC, 1941

High jump--6ft. 9in., Les Steers, Oregon, 1941

Broad jump--25ft., Jackie Robinson, UCLA, 1940

Pole vault--14ft. llin., Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows, SC, 1937

Mile relay--3m. 12.3s., Washington State team of 1937

Last year's score: SC, 62 1/5; Stanford, second, 42 1/5

First P.C.C. meet in 1919, revived annually through 1928, then revived in 1936 until discontinued because of war travel restrictions in 1943. Resumed in 1948.

Southern California has won ten in a row.

OTHER RECORDS HELD BY TROJANS

Pacific Coast Conference-Big Ten dual meet:

Low hurdles--22.9s., Earl Vickery, 1938 High hurdles--13.8s., Dick Attlesey, 1950 Pole vault--14ft. 6in., Earle Meadows and Bill Sefton, 1937

National Collegiate Championships:

100--9.4s., Frank Wykoff, June 7, 1930 (tie) 220--20.4s., Mel Patton, June 18, 1949 (tie) Mile--4m. 8.3s., Louis Zamperini, June 18, 1938 Pole vault--14ft. 8 7/8in., Bill Sefton, June 19, 1937

American Records: (make in United States, approved by AAU)

100--9.3s., Mel Patton, May 15, 1948
220--20.2s., Mel Patton, May 7, 1949
200 meters (around curve)--20.7s., Mel Patton, July 10, 1948
120 yard highs--13.5s., Dick Attlesey, May 13, 1950
110 meter highs--13.6s., Dick Attlesey, June 24, 1950
440-yard relay--40.5s., (Larry LaFond, Mickey Anderson, Payton Jordan, and Adrian Talley), May 15, 1938
880-yard relay--lm. 24s., (George Pasquali, Ron Frazier, Norm Stocks and Mel Patton), May 20, 1949

American College Records:

100--9.3s., Mel Patton, May 15, 1948
220--20.2s., Mel Patton, May 7, 1949
High hurdles--13.5s., Dick Attlesey, May 13, 1950
Pole vault--14ft. 1lin., Bill Sefton and Earle Meadows, May 29, 1937
Javelin--234ft. 3½in., Bob Peoples, May 17, 1941
440-yard relay--40.5s., (LaFond, Anderson, Jordan, Talley), May 15, 1938
880-yard relay--lm. 24s., (Pasquali, Frazier, Stocks, Patton), May 20, 1949

ICAAAA Championship Meet: (Trojans resigned membership, 1939)

100--9.6s., Frank Wykoff, 1931 (tie)
Mile--4m. 11.2s., Louis Zamperini, 1939
Low hurdles--22.8s., Earl Vickery, 1939
Javelin--223ft. 1\frac{1}{4}in., Bob Peoples, 1939
Broad jump--25ft. 3\frac{1}{2}in., Dick Barber, 1931

California Intercollegiates: (not held since 1945)

100--9.5s., Frank Wykoff, 1931 (tie)
220--20.8s., Frank Wykoff, 1931
880--lm. 55.4s., Vic Fitzmaurice, 1931
Mile--4m. 17.7s., Roland Sink, 1944
Low hurdles--23.4s., Ernest Payne, 1931
Shot put--51ft. 8½in., Earl Audet, 1944
Broad jump--25ft. 7 3/4in., Al Olson, 1935
Pole vault--13ft. 10 5/8in., Bill Grabar, 1932 (tie)

TROJAN FRESHMAN TRACK RECORDS

100--9.7s., Adrian Talley, April 2, 1935; *Mel Patton, April 20, 1946

220--20.9s., Charles Borah, May 15, 1946

440--48.2s., *Bob Chambers, April 5, 1947

880--lm. 54.5s., *Bob Chambers, March 29, 1947

Mile--4m. 17.7s., *Roland Sink, May 13, 1944

Two-mile--9m. 28.2s., Louis Zamperini, June 19, 1937

High Hurdles--14.4s., *Al Lawrence, May 20, 1944

Low Hurdles--23.1s., *Ron Frazier, May 3, 1947

Shot Put--53ft. 102in., Parry O'Brien, May 19, 1950

Discus--156ft. 94in., William Coleman, March 6, 1937

Javelin--221ft. 5in., Bob Peoples, March 18, 1938

High Jump--6ft. $6\frac{1}{2}$ in., Jack Barnes, March 27, 1948

Broad Jump--24ft. 6 3/8in., Dick Barber, April 27, 1929

Pole Vault--14ft., *Bob Hart, June 8, 1946

Mile Relay--3m. 21.2s., John Bradley, Harry Taylor, Len Laudenback, Brayton Norton, May 7, 1949

Two-mile Relay--7m. 57.3s., Gene Cleary, Brayton Norton, Fred Wehking, Lloyd Jepson, May 20, 1949

(*marks made in varsity meets as freshmen)